
Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green

Staines-upon-Thames TW18 1XB

www.spelthorne.gov.uk customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk Telephone 01784 451499

222

Spelthorne
Borough Council 

Council Meeting
Thursday, 24 October 2019

http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/
mailto:customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk




16 October 2019

Please reply to: 
Contact: Gill Scott
Direct line: 01784 444243
E-mail: g.scott@spelthorne.gov.uk

To the Councillors of Spelthorne Borough Council

I hereby summon you to attend a meeting of the Council to be held in the Council 
Chamber, Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-Thames on Thursday, 24 
October 2019 commencing at 7.30 pm for the transaction of the following business. 

Daniel Mouawad
Chief Executive

Councillors are encouraged to wear their badge of past office at the Council meeting.

Councillors are reminded that the Gifts and Hospitality Declaration book will be available 
outside the meeting room for you to record any gifts or hospitality offered to you since the 
last Council meeting.

For those Councillors wishing to participate, prayers will be said in the Leader’s 
office starting at 7pm.



AGENDA

Description Page nos.

1.  Apologies for absence
To receive any apologies for non-attendance.

2.  Minutes
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the Council meeting held 
on 18 July 2019.

11 - 30

3.  Disclosures of Interest
To receive any disclosures of interest from Councillors in accordance 
with the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members.

4.  Announcements from the Mayor
To receive any announcements from the Mayor.

5.  Announcements from the Leader
To receive any announcements from the Leader.

6.  Announcements from the Chief Executive
To receive any announcements from the Chief Executive.

7.  Questions from members of the public
The Leader, or his nominee, to answer any questions raised by 
members of the public in accordance with Standing Order 14.

Note: the deadline for questions to be considered at this meeting is 12 
noon on Thursday 17 October 2019.

8.  Petitions
To receive any petitions from members of the public.

9.  Recommendations of the Cabinet
To consider the recommendations of the Cabinet from its meeting held 
on 25 September 2019 relating to:

31 - 34

a)  Proposed new extension to Fordbridge Day Centre
b)  Appointment of Independent Remuneration Panel member
c)  Investment Acquisition 'X'



10.  Report from the Leader of the Council
To receive the report from the Leader of the Council on the work of the 
Cabinet at its meetings on 11 and 25 September 2019.

35 - 38

11.  Report from the Chairman of the Audit Committee
To receive the report from the Chairman of the Audit Committee on the 
work of her Committee.

39 - 40

12.  Report from the Chairman of the Licensing Committee
To receive the report from the Chairman of the Licensing Committee on 
the work of his Committee.

41 - 42

13.  Report from the Chairman of the Members' Code of Conduct 
Committee
To receive the report from the Chairman of the Members' Code of 
Conduct Committee on the work of his Committee.

43 - 44

14.  Report from the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
To receive the report from the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on the work of her Committee.

45 - 46

15.  Report from the Chairman of the Planning Committee
To receive the reports from the Chairman of the Planning Committee on 
the work of his Committee at its meetings between July and September 
2019 (copy attached) and 16 October (to follow).

47 - 48

16.  Motions
To receive any motions from Councillors in accordance with Standing 
Order 19.  The following 5 motions were received by the deadline of 
Monday, 14 October 2019.

1. “This council supports the International Holocaust Remembrance 
Alliance definition of Anti-Semitism (decided on 26 May 2016 at 
Bucharest) and henceforward adopts this definition and the 
illustrative examples for all relevant aspects of Council policy 
particularly in the field of anti-discrimination and the promotion of 
human rights.”

Proposed by Councillor I.T.E. Harvey
Seconded by Councillor R.W. Sider BEM

2. “The Council is currently working on the development of its new 
Corporate Plan to cover the next three years of this administration.  
In doing so it will be reaffirming its four Corporate Priorities of:
1. Housing
2. Economic Development 
3. Clean and Safe Environment
4. Financial Sustainability



This Council notes that many other Councils have recently declared 
a “climate emergency”. We understand that there is rightly much 
concern about climate change and that urgent action is needed. This 
Council is committed to its priorities including a clean and safe 
environment.  It is the right thing to do to tackle climate change for 
future generations and to further community wellbeing.  

Therefore, this Council commits to establishing a Leader’s task 
group to work towards delivering a strategy in 2020 that clearly 
outlines how we plan to deliver the target of net zero carbon 
emissions by 2050. We are also committed to delivering to our 
residents safe and secure homes, and secure employment, as 
sustainably as possible.”  

Proposed by Councillor I.T.E. Harvey
Seconded by Councillor A.C. Harman

3. “This Council caveats its support for a third runway and appropriate 
and proportionate expansion, subject to Heathrow meeting:
a) the 16 requirements as recommended by the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee at its extraordinary meeting on 3 September 
2019; and

b) our demands that our impacted communities be properly 
compensated via the Wider Property Offer Zone scheme.”

Proposed by Councillor I.T.E. Harvey
Seconded by Councillor J.R. Boughtflower

4. “Following the Prime Minister’s announcement that the UK will 
eradicate its net contribution to climate change by 2050:
This Council resolves to:
1. Commit to working closely with the Government, the Environment 

Agency, our County colleagues, local businesses, our residents 
and other partners in meeting this target;

2. Deliver a strategy in 2019/20 that clearly outlines how we plan to 
deliver the target; and

3. Write to the government asking them to confirm what support will 
be made available to local authorities to help achieve this goal.”

Proposed by Councillor R.A. Smith-Ainsley
Seconded by Councillor J.R. Boughtflower

5. “The Council notes the position of Spelthorne at the bottom of the 
Friends of the Earth table of the most climate-friendly areas in 
England and Wales. It is resolved that Spelthorne Borough Council 
will take steps to become a national leader in addressing carbon 
emissions and climate change. To achieve this aim, it is recognised 
that it is essential that there is genuine engagement across all 
segments of society. 

In order to become a leading Council in addressing Climate Change 
and environmental degradation Spelthorne Council resolves to take 
the following actions: 



 To recognise that responding to Climate Change spans Council 
Election cycles and as such cannot only be considered within the 
Cabinet Environment portfolio. 

 All Council policies will be required to directly address their 
environmental and climate change impacts and ensure that 
negative consequences are eliminated or at least minimised.

 To establish an Environmental Partnership group, involving 
Councillors across all parties, residents, young citizens, 
businesses and experts. The remit of this group would be:

1. To consider the latest best practice and expert advice on 
solutions and to consider systematically the climate 
change impact of each area of the Council's activities.

2. To recommend ways to maximise local benefits of the 
actions in other sectors such as employment, health, 
agriculture, transport and the local economy

This group will report directly to the Cabinet as the ruling body. 
And should be operational within 10 weeks

 To develop a concrete Climate Action Plan scorecard, within a 3 
month period, against which progress can be measured.  Once 
established, regular updates of progress are to be provided at 
every Council meeting.

 To commit the Council to being net-zero carbon before 2030.”
Proposed by Councillor B.B. Spoor
Seconded by Councillor T. Lagden

17.  Questions on Ward Issues
The Leader, or his nominee, to answer questions from Councillors on 
issues in their Wards, in accordance with Standing Order 15.

Note: the deadline for questions to be considered at this meeting is 12 
noon on Thursday 17 October 2019.

18.  General questions
The Leader, or his nominee, to answer questions from Councillors on 
matters affecting the Borough, in accordance with Standing Order 15.

Note: the deadline for questions to be considered at this meeting is 12 
noon on Thursday 17 October 2019.

The following questions were received by 16 October 2019.

Question 1 from Councillor R.W. Sider, BEM:

“Will the Leader and Members of this Council join me in congratulating 
the Group Head for Neighbourhood Services and her staff in achieving 



what can only be described as phenomenal and outstanding awards in 
the South and South East in Bloom awards of 2019, these being 
Sunbury Cemetery declared as the overall winner of Cemetery of the 
Year, Ashford and Staines Cemeteries receiving Gold awards, and 
Sunbury Walled Garden yet another Gold in the small park category.”

Question 2 from Councillor R.W. Sider, BEM

“At the meeting of the Full Council on July the 18th 2019 I placed a 
motion before the Council which read ‘ That officers investigate whether 
it is feasible to enter into a reciprocal agreement with Surrey County 
Council for Spelthorne Borough Council to act on their behalf to remove 
Traveller encampments when on the highway, and append such 
charges involved to Surrey’. In view of the fact that since the 18th of July 
there has been a further encampment by Travellers on the highway in 
Old Charlton Road Shepperton in September, can the Leader inform me 
of the progress that officers have made in their investigations with 
Surrey County Council with regard to the statement in my motion of the 
18th July 2019.”

Question 3 from Councillor L.E. Nichols

“The Redmond review is an “independent review into the arrangements 
in place to support the transparency and quality of local authority 
financial reporting and external audit in England”.  Will the Council be 
making a formal submission in response to the Call for Views which 
closes on 22nd November 2019?”

Question 4 from Councillor C.L. Bateson 

“Given the Council’s decision to abandon building a new Leisure Centre 
on Staines Park, can we be updated as to the Council’s proposals for an 
alternative site, timescale for announcement and proposed means of 
consultation with Local Residents. Do these include rebuilding on the 
existing site or refurbishing the current Leisure Centre?”

19.  Appointment of representative Trustees
Staines Parochial Charity
To consider the appointment of Jean Pinkerton as a trustee of Staines 
Parochial Charity for a four year term expiring 31 October 2023.

Laleham Parish Lands Trust
To consider the appointment of Dominic O’Malley as a trustee of 
Laleham Charities – Village Hall and Recreation Grounds for a four year 
term expiring 31 October 2023. 

20.  Exempt Business
To move the exclusion of the Press/Public for the following item, in view 
of the likely disclosure of exempt information within the meaning of Part 
1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended by 
the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 and by the 
Local Government (Access to information) (Variation) Order 2006.



21.  Exempt report - Supplementary Capital estimate for property 
acquisition V
To consider an exempt report requesting a supplementary capital 
estimate in relation to property acquisition V.

This report contains exempt information within the meaning of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended by the 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 and by the Local 
Government (Access to information) (Variation) Order 2006 Paragraph 3 
– Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information) and in all the 
circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information 
because (a) the report contains details of a proposed procurement, and 
to publish details of the Council’s intentions in advance would prejudice 
a best value deal for the Council and (b) the report contains confidential 
details of a proposed acquisition and publication of the details of this 
would prejudice the ability of the Council to conclude this negotiation on 
the best terms possible.

49 - 50



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE SPELTHORNE BOROUGH COUNCIL

Minutes of the Council Meeting of Spelthorne Borough Council held in 
the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-

Thames on Thursday, 18 July 2019 at 7.30 pm

Present:

Councillors:

M.M. Attewell
C. Barnard (Deputy Mayor)

C.L. Barratt
R.O. Barratt
C. Bateson
I.J. Beardsmore
J.R. Boughtflower
A. Brar
S. Buttar
R. Chandler
N.L. Cornes
J.H.J. Doerfel
J.T.F. Doran

S.M. Doran
R.D. Dunn
S.A. Dunn
T. Fidler
N.J. Gething
M. Gibson
K.M. Grant
A.C. Harman (Deputy Leader)

H. Harvey
I.T.E. Harvey (Leader)

T. Lagden
V.J. Leighton
M.J. Madams (Mayor)

J. McIlroy
A.J. Mitchell
L. Nichols
R.J. Noble
O. Rybinski
J.R. Sexton
R.W. Sider BEM
V. Siva
R.A. Smith-Ainsley
B.B. Spoor
J. Vinson

Councillor M. Madams, The Mayor, in the Chair

Apologies: Apologies were received from Councillor N. Islam and 
Mr Murray Litvak, Chairman of the Members’ Code of Conduct 
Committee.

187/19  Minutes 
The minutes of the Annual Council meeting held on 21 May 2019 were agreed 
as a correct record.

188/19  Disclosures of Interest 
There were no disclosures of interest.

189/19  Announcements from the Mayor 
The Mayor had circulated details of her upcoming events and encouraged 
support for the fish and chip supper being held at the Greeno Centre, 
Shepperton on 26 July and the barbeque at the Runnymede Hotel and Spa on 
4 August.

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



Council, 18 July 2019 - continued

2

The Mayor reminded members that the new procedure for declaring gifts and 
hospitality was agreed by Council in February 2019. She advised that the 
Gifts and Hospitality Declaration book would be available at all meetings and 
records would be published on the website on a monthly basis. 

190/19  Announcements from the Leader 
The Leader made the following announcements:

“Firstly some sad news, on Monday of this week, Emily, the 21 year old 
daughter of Surrey County Council Leader Tim Oliver and his wife Debbie, 
sadly passed away having suffered a rare brain tumour for the last 18 months. 
We offer our condolences to Tim and family.

More uplifting, I am delighted to announce that HRH Princess Alexandra KG 
GCVO visited the Embroidery Gallery in the Walled Garden Sunbury, and 
presented The Swan Sanctuary in Shepperton with the Queen’s Award for 
Voluntary Service on 2 July 2019. This is the highest award given to volunteer 
groups across the UK.  
 
Congratulations to all our finalists and winners that attended our Capture 
Spelthorne Awards ceremony held at Shepperton Studios. The overall winner 
across all categories was awarded to Elaine Wisden.
 
There are 13 categories in the Spelthorne Means Business Awards 2019. 
Nomination entry closes on 30 September and the black tie gala dinner to 
announce the winners is on 17 October at Shepperton Studios.
 
Congratulations to Parks Officer Richard Leppard, who has retired after 
serving Spelthorne Council for 50 years. On behalf of the Spelthorne 
community we thank you for your hard work and dedication. 
 
The Council’s Community Wellbeing team have started regular visits to St 
Peter’s hospital wards to liaise with patients directly about services available 
which may help them once back home. These include handyperson grabrails, 
Meals on Wheels, Community alarms and social prescribing.
 
Spelthorne Planning Committee has granted planning permission for a new 
development by Berkeley Homes at 17-51 London Road, Staines-upon-
Thames. This will directly provide 41 homes for affordable rent from this 
Council.
 
A Planning Application has been submitted to build a hostel for single 
homeless people on The White House site on Kingston Road, Ashford. The 
anticipation is that this will be fully manged by the Salvation Army.

Netflix recently announced that they will be establishing a production hub at 
Shepperton Studios. This will be within the existing establishment and not 
contingent upon the planned expansion. This is further evidence that 
Spelthorne Means Business and is indeed a great place to do business under 
this Conservative administration.

Page 12



Council, 18 July 2019 - continued

3

Free Music in the Park took place on 7 July at The Walled Garden, Lower 
Sunbury from 2-4pm, with a performance by Saxophany.

Last weekend there were open air film shows and airings of the sporting 
events in Staines, arranged by the BID team. Over 500 attended the showing 
of Bohemian Rhapsody on Saturday night alone.

For those who are not aware, we are carrying out work to replace the roof of 
the Clock Tower at the Council Offices here in Knowle Green. The works are 
expected to be completed by the end of July.
 
The only way to tackle plastic waste is to move away from the recycling of 
single-use plastics towards avoiding them altogether and so we are working 
towards zero use across our own operations and services. The recent move 
from plastic disposable to paper cups is a clear and tangible demonstration of 
this.
 
The Laleham Riverside clean-up took place from 10am today with the Surrey 
Canoe Club and teenage volunteers from the National Citizens Service 
followed by a community BBQ at 1pm, attended by the Mayor.
 
I would like to thank all the staff who helped clear over 15 tonnes of unwanted 
items from Viola Avenue in Stanwell during two street clean days on 29 May 
and 5 June.
 
The Heathrow Airport expansion statutory consultation is now underway. We 
had a very successful and informative consultation with Councillors and 
Residents Associations on 2nd July, which was well received. Our internal 
Working Group is currently assessing a very significant body of evidence in 
preparing the Council’s response. Notwithstanding this, in the light of the 
prospective cumulative impact on the Borough and its communities and 
businesses, I have asked the Chairman of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
to include on the Committee’s Work Programme a review of the Council’s 
strategic stance on Heathrow. I can confirm that there will be an extraordinary 
meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 3rd September to 
consider this.”

191/19  Announcements from the Chief Executive 
The Chief Executive thanked Parks Officer Richard Leppard, who had retired 
after 50 years of public service at Spelthorne. He also expressed his 
appreciation to colleagues across the authority, from Accountancy and Asset 
Management to Strategic Planning and Streetscene, for their continued public 
service commitment that ensures our communities remain at the very heart of 
everything we strive to accomplish.

192/19  Questions from members of the public 
The Mayor reported that, under Standing Order 14, five questions had been 
received from members of the public.

Page 13



Council, 18 July 2019 - continued

4

Three of those were present to put their questions at the meeting.

Question from John Seaman:

“To enhance equity may everyone who receives an answer to a written 
question at a meeting of Spelthorne Borough Council have the opportunity to 
ask a supplementary question?”

 “Is Flower Pot Green in Sunbury a registered village green?”

Response from the Leader, Councillor Ian Harvey:

“Thank you for your questions Mr. Seaman. 
The procedure for public questions and councillor questions is long-
established.  There are no current plans to change the way that it works.  
Whilst the opportunity to ask questions at Council is one of the rights which 
citizens have, it is by no means the only option that they have.  Residents who 
wish to engage with the Council should always speak first to their ward 
councillors who are the elected representatives for the area.  Your Councillors 
may have the answers you require or they can get the answers from officers.  
On matters which relate to Cabinet issues I would also recommend residents 
to engage with the Portfolio Holder concerned.  In speaking with councillors 
directly you will find that you can ask as many supplementary questions as 
you like and you will most likely get the information you are seeking.
 
On your second point - Flower Point Green is not a village green but open 
spaces in Spelthorne are protected under the Local Plan so there is no 
particular benefit from such a designation. 

In the current Local Plan, it is designated Protected Urban Open Space. We 
are in the process of reviewing the Plan and have proposed to remove that 
designation in favour of the national policy that protects all open space of 
public value, which will provide more protection than the current designation 
as we have lost some appeals for development on Protected Urban Open 
Space. We will also be assessing our spaces, including Flower Pot Green, for 
the higher level of protection offered by the Local Green Space designation 
that national policy also provides.” 

Following the meeting the Council became aware that the response given was 
inaccurate and provided Mr Seaman with the following additional response: 

“Further to the questions below that you posed for the Spelthorne Council 
meeting last week, we were alerted to the possibility that the response you 
received in respect of Village Green status was incorrect. The background 
information to assist in the response was gathered by my team so we have 
investigated further.
We can now confirm that the incorrect answer was given at Council, for which 
we apologise. It was given in good faith but we should have checked with 
Surrey County Council, who are the statutory commons land authority. We 

Page 14



Council, 18 July 2019 - continued

5

have the land listed as Common Land, however the Common Registration Act 
1965 allowed a separation of Common Land and Village Greens on 
registration so Village Greens became their own entity.  The listing as a 
Village Green was made in 1968 and therefore should be registered as 
such. Both Common Land and Village Greens benefit from the same level of 
protection but the distinction between designations is to reflect the different 
purposes the land may have. For example, Common Land is more associated 
with rights to roam and other traditional rights such as grazing of livestock 
whereas Village Greens are registered by virtue of activities they host such as 
sports, pastimes and fetes.

Common Land is shown on our Policies Map and Flower Pot Green is 
included within this designation but there is not a separate designation for 
Village Greens. This is something we can update as we’re reviewing the Local 
Plan and will produce a new Policies Map. We will liaise with the County 
Council to ensure we are correctly distinguishing the parcels of land between 
Common Land and Village Greens.” 

Question from Caroline Nichols:

“This is a question about the Council’s forward plan for food and drink carton 
recycling.

Background: 
In 2008 Spelthorne Council introduced large collection containers at five 
recycling sites in the borough. The containers were supplied with a free 
collection service by ACE, the umbrella organisation for carton processing in 
the UK. After a while, they were replaced by small lockable black bins 
because of contamination at one or more sites, but my understanding is that 
the collection service remained free (as it does for all the ‘first wave’ councils 
who took up the five-container offer). In December 2017 Spelthorne 
discontinued the service. 

There is currently no doorstep carton collection and the only bring-site is a 
separate Surrey County Council facility at Charlton Lane. This, according to 
ACE statistics, means Spelthorne is one of only 6% of councils that does not 
make a systematic effort to collect cartons (a scheme which is now being 
extended to paper coffee cups). According to ACE, currently 66% of local 
authorities collect beverage cartons at kerbside.

Why did the Council stop the bring-site collection? Are there plans to 
introduce doorstep recycling, and would the Council consider reintroducing 
carton collection at all bring sites?” 

Response from Councillor Richard Barratt, Portfolio Holder for 
Environment:

“Thank you for your question Mrs Nichols. 

Page 15



Council, 18 July 2019 - continued

6

Most Waste Collection Authorities in Surrey County Council, including 
Spelthorne, have stopped collecting Tetrapak recently as part of the doorstep 
recycling stream, in bring bank and community centres, due to logistical and 
environmental reasons.

Tetrakpak tends to have high contamination rates and is not widely used 
compared to other types of recyclable containers, making the whole recycling 
process unsustainable, disproportionally costly and difficult to maintain as the 
energy and resources required to for its recycling have a greater 
environmental impact than other alternatives to dispose of this type of 
container.

Additionally, many Waste Disposal Authorities and waste managing 
contractors no longer accept Tetrapak and it is also no longer possible to ship 
this stream abroad to be recycled, as countries that used to accept recycling 
streams including Tetrapak have recently banned their import. 

That is why, after extraordinary exertions, we have decided to stop collecting 
Tetrapak as this takes too much valuable space, energy and assets that can 
be used for more popular recyclable materials with lower contamination rates, 
better sustainability and part of a circular economy.” 

The written response sent to Mrs Nichols following the meeting included this 
additional information:

“The following article explains why although TetraPak is recyclable it is not 
environmentally friendly: https://treadingmyownpath.com/2014/09/11/why-
tetra-paks-arent-green-even-though-theyre-recyclable/ “

Question from Shadia Doerfel:

“As a resident and voter within Spelthorne, and in the light of the May 2019 
elections where Spelthorne residents voted to change the political make-up of 
the Council by voting in Greens, Libdems and Labour Councillors into the 
Council family, and given that the Local Plan intends to directly affect 
residents of Spelthorne for the next 15yrs, can the Council and Cabinet 
confirm that:

(a) the Local Plan Working Group will be updated to reflect the residents' 
votes in and results of the May 2019 elections so that a representative of each 
democratically party forms part of this group's quorum? If not, why not? (It 
seems in light of the above that paragraph 8 of the 2018 FAQS is overtaken 
by the May 2019 elections and now appears undemocratic.) and
(b) given the regard apparently demonstrated towards those who form part of 
the community or who work in green spaces such as Parks Officer Richard 
Leppard who was recently celebrated by Daniel Mouawad and Madam Mayor 
for 50yrs service, will the Council will similarly reach out to Spelthorne 
residents so that Council including Cabinet members and those who sit on the 
Local Plan Working Group will hold regular meetings and open forum events 

Page 16

https://treadingmyownpath.com/2014/09/11/why-tetra-paks-arent-green-even-though-theyre-recyclable/
https://treadingmyownpath.com/2014/09/11/why-tetra-paks-arent-green-even-though-theyre-recyclable/


Council, 18 July 2019 - continued

7

on a monthly or 6 weekly basis to engage residents in the development of the 
Local Plan so residents are not excluded from this crucial conversation? 

If not, why not?”

Response from the Leader, Councillor Ian Harvey:

“Thank you for your question Mrs Doerfel.

I don’t agree that the political make-up of the Council changed in May 2019.  
The Borough had the benefit of a Conservative majority administration before 
then and they were wise enough to return a Conservative majority 
administration for the next four years.  This demonstrates our residents trust 
in us to deal competently with the Local Plan.  
 
As regards the Local Plan Working Party, this is a long-standing working 
group which has assisted Cabinet in its work for many years. It is not political 
and there is no requirement for political proportionality, as there are with some 
Council Committees, such as Overview and Scrutiny. Working parties and 
task groups are not formal committees, they are informal ways of dealing with 
larger pieces of work where officers and members need to work closely 
together over a period of time.  It is not a public committee because officers 
and members need the opportunity to debate matters privately whilst issues 
are at a formative stage.  This is common practice across local government.
 
Although the May elections saw newly elected councillors from other political 
parties join the Council, my decision was to maintain the status quo by 
retaining Cllr Beardsmore on the group.  He has a long-standing involvement 
with both the planning committee and the Local Plan Working Party, he is well 
respected and his experience valued. Political proportionality is not the main 
criteria for a task group or working party, what matters more is the experience 
of the councillor and the contribution they can make.  
 
When councillors seek to mislead or frighten the public by wrongly suggesting 
that our green spaces are under threat then they highlight how unsuitable they 
are to serve on such a working party.  We are seeking knowledge, 
competence and level headedness.  Councillors who demonstrate an 
unwillingness to take advice from officers or work collegiately with other 
councillors on a non-political basis also rule themselves out.  
 
As regards the second part of your question:  Work on the new Local Plan has 
been progressing for a number of years and the first public consultation on 
Issues and Options took place in May and June 2018. This was the first 
opportunity for our communities to give us their views on strategic options for 
how the Local Plan should progress. The responses we had to the 
consultation are being used to help shape and develop our strategy before we 
carry out further consultation in the autumn. We continue to have regular 
engagement with our communities throughout this process and all councillors 
will be able to play a part in the development of the Local Plan even if they are 

Page 17



Council, 18 July 2019 - continued

8

not part of the working group as it is still in the engagement and scoping 
stage.”  

Question from Rachel Batsford

The following public question was read out at the meeting by the Head of 
Corporate Governance in the absence of the questioner: 

“Why has Richmond Road, Staines been denied Parking Permits although a 
petition was signed by the qualifying percentage of residents in favour of a 
permit scheme? All other roads surrounding the town centre have been 
granted them (I refer to Zone A, B, C, D & E)?

Why has the council proposed a 15 storey development on the site of the old 
BUPA building in Staines when the profile of all surrounding buildings in 
Staines is much lower? This will set a terrible precedent for further 
developments overlooking the river, spoiling the skyline of our historic town. 

Please can the council reconsider the design of this development to be more 
in keeping with the area?”

Response provided at the meeting by the Leader, Councillor Ian Harvey:

“Thank you for your questions Ms Batsford.
In response to your first question. Although Spelthorne Borough Council 
manages the enforcement of parking locally, it doesn’t have the authority to 
decide which streets are covered by Controlled Parking Zones.  The County 
Council is the Highway Authority and these are matters which they decide.  
Notwithstanding this, Spelthorne and Surrey work together through the 
Spelthorne Joint Committee which would be the appropriate forum to consider 
and decide such matters. We advise that the appropriate course of action is 
for you to approach your County Council Divisional Member for their 
engagement.

In response to your second question. The scheme’s height and massing has 
carefully evolved in consultation with key stakeholders including planners, the 
public and an independent regional design review panel. This is not the only 
site in Staines where tall buildings will be developed. There are already 
consented examples such as Bridge Street Car Park (12 storeys), London 
Square (10 storeys) and the former Centrica site (14 storeys).  Also, it is 
important to recognise central government imposes annual housing targets 
upon the Council. If we don’t intensify development on brownfield sites in 
sustainable town centre locations, then we will not be able to demonstrate a 
supply of future housing in sufficient numbers.  Failure to deliver housing puts 
pressure on our valuable green belt land, as developers will seek to exploit 
the failure to deliver in the town centres.  The town centres, particularly 
Staines are viewed as being the most appropriate location for accommodating 
sustainable higher density developments given their location next to local 
facilities and transport links.  
 

Page 18



Council, 18 July 2019 - continued

9

Although the Council is promoting this development with its housing company, 
Knowle Green Estates Ltd, it is important to remember that the Planning 
Committee will have the final decision on whether the plans are appropriate 
for the area.”  

Question from Paul Street:

This question and answer was circulated in writing to all present at the 
meeting as Mr Street was not in attendance:

“We notice that Spelthorne BC procure their electricity for their estate and 
operations from nPower via the Kent Council Laser energy buying group. This 
is electricity from a fuel mix of some of the lowest proportions of renewable 
energy and highest of fossil fuels. Why is Spelthorne not switching to 100% 
renewable electricity supplier in the interest of climate change, especially 
when it appears it would be economically more advantageous to do so? Some 
other councils within Surrey have already made the switch and others are 
planning to do so. And secondly, but directly related, do Spelthorne BC plan 
to declare a meaningful climate emergency with targets and an action plan?”

Response provided in writing from Councillor Richard Barratt, Portfolio 
Holder for Environment:

“Thank you for your question Mr Street.  

As regards the first part of your question on energy procurement:  

As you correctly observe, Spelthorne Council procures its energy through the 
public sector energy buying group LASER. We have a four year term 
agreement under which they procure our energy, including electricity. They 
also provide the Council with a full energy bureau service including bill 
validation, online reporting and monitoring, query management and additional 
services. Our current agreement ends in Sept 2020 and we have already 
started work to review what we will purchase in future.  In the draft 
specification we are including green energy supply options.

Energy supply is just one element of Spelthorne’s work to improve 
sustainability.  We have had success in making our buildings more energy 
efficient, reducing the amount of energy we consume and the associated 
carbon emissions. We have undertaken numerous projects across our estate 
to date, reducing energy use by 24% and also have solar installations on a 
number of our properties including most recently on two of our Day Centres.  
We also work with the community to improve their use of energy.  We support 
homes in fuel poverty through the Governments ECO: Help to Heat Scheme 
and a Capital fund. Through this scheme 348 energy efficient measures have 
been installed in fuel poor homes in Spelthorne in the last year and 2,643 
measures since the scheme began in 2014. We have also supported 70 Park 
Homes with new boiler and heating controls.

This list of Council projects includes

Page 19



Council, 18 July 2019 - continued

10

Council Offices:
Loft Insulation
Cavity Wall insulation
Energy Efficient Lighting
Powerperfector (Voltage optimiser)
Draught proofing
Boiler optimisation & pipe insulation
Switch off controls for photocopiers, printers and dispensers
Behavioural change campaign (previously Green Champions)
New double glazed windows (as part of office refurbishment programme, 
rather than the sustainability programme)

White House Depot:
Powerperfector (Voltage optimiser)
Switch off controls
Boiler optimisation
Light sensors in Mess Room

Tothill MSCP:
Powerpefector (Voltage optimiser)
Energy Efficient Lighting

Elmsleigh MSCP:
Energy Efficient Lighting

Greeno Day Centre:
Energy Efficient Lighting
Re-Commissioning of air handling unit
Correct operation of Thermostatic Radiator Valves (TRVs)
Boiler optimisation
Cavity Wall Insulation

Fordbridge Day Centre:
Energy Efficient Lighting
Correct operation of TRVs
Boiler optimisation
Cavity Wall Insulation

Staines Day Centre:
Energy Efficient Lighting
Boiler optimisation

Additionally:
The Solar PV installations at Staines and Fordbridge Day Centres now 
generate 15% of their onsite electricity use.

We have Electric Vehicle charging points in our two multi-storey car parks in 
Staines Town Centre and for staff at our Knowle Green offices.

Page 20



Council, 18 July 2019 - continued

11

As regards the second part of your question:

Many councils have declared a climate emergency but very few have put any 
meaningful plans behind it.  This is purely meaningless tokenism and is not 
the way this Council operates. This Council will wish to consider its agenda 
carefully in light of the progress we have made in our 2016-2019 
Sustainability Strategy.  This covers nine key areas.  Energy efficiency; Water 
efficiency; Waste and pollution; Sustainable procurement; Sustainable 
planning, housing, and regeneration; Sustainable transport and travel; 
Biodiversity and open spaces; Awareness and engagement; Risks and 
adaptation.

Once officers have reported on the outcomes of this strategy and the way 
forward for the Council, we will consider how we can meaningfully improve 
our targets to bring about a net zero carbon Borough and the timescales to 
achieve this. 

I should also point out that that we are taking other tangible practical steps to 
improve the environment in addition to those mentioned above such as 
strongly advocating for the environmentally friendly Southern Light Rail linking 
Staines and the main rail network to a newly expanded Heathrow, and the 
scheme currently underway of planting 851 trees in the Borough. In 
Spelthorne we don’t just make worthless statements, we actually do things. I 
look forward to hearing your support for these positive measures.”

The Mayor confirmed that the responses would be sent to the questioners in 
writing following the meeting.

193/19  Petitions 
There were no Petitions.

194/19  Report from the Leader of the Council 
The Leader of the Council, Councillor I.T.E. Harvey, presented the reports of 
the Cabinet meetings held on 19 June 2019 and 17 July 2019 which outlined 
the matters the Cabinet had decided since the last Council meeting. 

195/19  Report from the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

The Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Councillor V.J. 
Leighton, presented her report which outlined the matters the Committee had 
considered since the last Council meeting.

196/19  Report from the Chairman of the Planning Committee 
The Chairman of the Planning Committee, Councillor R.A. Smith-Ainsley, 
presented his report which outlined the matters the Committee had decided 
since the last Council meeting.

Page 21



Council, 18 July 2019 - continued

12

197/19  Motions 
In accordance with Standing Order 17 the Council received three written 
Notices of Motions.

Councillor R.W. Sider BEM moved and Councillor C. Barnard seconded the 
following motion:

“That officers investigate whether it is feasible to enter into a reciprocal 
agreement with Surrey County Council for Spelthorne Borough Council to act 
on their behalf to remove Traveller encampments when on the highway and 
append such charges involved to Surrey.”

The Leader, Councillor I.T.E. Harvey gave the following reply to the Motion:

“Thank you Councillor Sider for raising this issue.

I can assure all councillors that Officers will always look to assist the County 
Council wherever possible to ensure that any unlawful encampments are 
dealt with quickly and efficiently.   
It seems like a very attractive proposition for us to take more control to 
respond the travellers on the highway.  I suspect that it’s not a straightforward 
matter and after initial discussions with Officers we think that it may not prove 
to be viable in the long run.    

The reason the Borough is able to deal with travellers so swiftly is because of 
the processes and joint working between the JET team and Legal.  We doubt 
we can replicate this with County Council staff on whom we would still have to 
rely on a case by case basis.  The alternative would be for us to take on an 
agency agreement from the County Council to deal with part of their functions 
for them.  That may not be something we wish to consider at this time.  

Nevertheless, it is something which I think we can ask Officers to explore and 
then report back to the Portfolio Holder.  On that basis I will support your 
motion, and ask all Members to do likewise.”

The Motion was carried.

Resolved that officers investigate whether it is feasible to enter into a 
reciprocal agreement with Surrey County Council for Spelthorne Borough 
Council to act on their behalf to remove Traveller encampments when on the 
highway and append such charges involved to Surrey.

The second Motion was moved by Councillor L.E. Nichols and seconded by 
Councillor S.M. Doran:

“That henceforth the formal position of Spelthorne Borough Council will be to 
oppose any increase in air traffic movements at Heathrow airport.

The Council notes that this new position in principle is based on the impact on 
local residents and the environment from air traffic, and that the Council now 

Page 22



Council, 18 July 2019 - continued

13

believes that an increase in capacity is unsustainable and damaging to the 
borough.

The Council’s response to the LHR Expansion Consultation closing on 13th 
September 2019 will clearly indicate this change in policy and Spelthorne 
Borough Council’s opposition to the proposals in principle.”

The Leader, Councillor I.T.E Harvey proposed the following amendment 
which was seconded by Councillor A.C. Harman:

“That the matter be referred to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 
consideration.”

Councillor L. E. Nichols requested a recorded vote on the amendment.

The voting on the amendment was as follows:
FOR (22) Councillors: Attewell, Barnard, C. Barratt, R. Barratt, 

Boughtflower, Brar, Buttar, Chandler, Gething, Gibson, 
Harman, H. Harvey, I.T.E. Harvey, Leighton, Madams, 
McIlroy, Mitchell, Noble, Rybinski, Sexton, Sider and 
Smith-Ainsley.

AGAINST (15) Councillors: Bateson, Beardsmore, Cornes, Doerfel,    
J. Doran, S. Doran, R, Dunn, S. Dunn, Fidler, Grant, 
Lagden, Nichols, Siva, Spoor and Vinson.

The amendment was carried and the substantive Motion put to the vote.

The substantive Motion was carried.

Resolved that the Motion be referred to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for consideration.

The third Motion was moved by Councillor J.H.J. Doerfel and seconded by 
Councillor V. Siva:

“In the light of Spelthorne Borough Council's commitment not to allow "any 
developments in the Borough that are detrimental to air quality" (as per the 
SBC press release 'Protecting Air quality in Spelthorne' dated 20/6/2019) and 
bearing in mind the fact that any Heathrow expansion will have serious knock 
on effects in terms of air quality and reduction of green spaces in the Borough 
inter alia through the envisaged building of a large car park between Oaks 
Road and the A3044 in Stanwell which currently acts as an important noise 
and pollution buffer zone for residents and as a carbon sink, the Council's new 
position to be reflected in its official response to the London Heathrow 
expansion consultation will be to oppose any expansion of Heathrow 
completely.”

The Leader, Councillor I.T.E Harvey proposed the following amendment 
which was seconded by Councillor A.C. Harman:

Page 23



Council, 18 July 2019 - continued

14

“That the matter be referred to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 
consideration.”

The amendment was carried and the substantive Motion put to the vote.

The substantive Motion was carried.

Resolved that the Motion be referred to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for consideration.

198/19  Questions on Ward Issues 
One question was submitted by Councillor J. R. Sexton.

Question from Councillor Joanne Sexton:

“Why did it take the Police one day to support the Council to move the 
unlawful caravans and owners from Shortwood Common on the 16th June?
We allowed them one night driving around the Common like a race track. 
The Council and the Police have a statutory duty to protect the land under 
section 34, 1988 Road Traffic Act. 
Why was this not used to move them on sooner? It also states “No vehicle 
may be driven on common land” and we allowed them to flout the law. Can I 
have assurances that if I receive a call again we will ensure we all act sooner? 
The law is the law and we must ensure all abide accordingly.”

Response from Councillor Ian Harvey:

“Thank you for your question Cllr Sexton.

The encampment arrived on Sunday morning 16 June.  Police attended and 
during the course of the day conferred with the Group Head for 
Neighbourhood Services.

In accordance with the agreed joint protocol, the Police carried out an initial 
assessment.  They concluded that they did not have the grounds to issue a 
notice to move the encampment under s.61 of the Criminal Justice and Public 
Order Act 1994.

The Police reported this decision to Council Officers and agreed that a further 
visit would be carried out on Monday morning. 

At the time of assessment on the Sunday there were no reports of crime and it 
was therefore understandable why the Police did not use powers under 
section 61 at that point. 

The situation then changed overnight with the reports from residents about 
damage to the Common.  The situation was reassessed by the Police and 
Council Officers on Monday morning.  

Page 24



Council, 18 July 2019 - continued

15

By Monday morning it was clear that first, damage was being done to the 
Common which is a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI).  There was 
impact on flora and fauna, and there were concerns about the open gate and 
the risk of cattle escaping and causing a danger on the highway.

Secondly it was clear that further heavy rain was forecast and there was every 
chance of the Travellers becoming stuck in the mud and not being able to 
leave the site for some time – which would further risk negative impacts on 
the SSSI site.  

As a result of these concerns, a second assessment was made by the Police 
who decided that a section 61 notice would be issued.  This was subsequently 
issued at 3pm on Monday and the site mostly clear by 5pm although one 
vehicle broken down was finally moved at 8pm.  

As for the Road Traffic Act 1988, as Cllr Sexton correctly identifies it is an 
offence to drive on common land.  

The joint protocol between Police and Surrey councils has been agreed to 
deal with any unauthorised encampments in a proportionate way which will 
stand up to scrutiny. 

Driving vehicles on the common land was an aggravating factor which 
supported the Police decision to use their s.61 powers.  Reporting the drivers 
for a summons would have likely hindered the swift removal of the vehicles 
and would not have led to the seizing of the vehicles in any event. 

The appropriate legislation in these circumstances notwithstanding any 
serious criminal offences being committed was the Criminal Justice and 
Public Order Act 1994.  In these circumstances the Police used their power 
under s.61 but the Council was also preparing to issue notices itself under 
s.77 should the s.61 not have been issued.

We have always and will continue where possible to move unlawful 
encampments as quickly as possible.  However we are required to follow the 
relevant laws and proper process when carrying out the eviction. It is 
therefore not possible to assure councillors that anyone of us will act sooner 
as circumstances for each unlawful encampment have to be assessed first. It 
is submitted that the Shortwood Common encampment was removed as per 
the protocol and in the shortest possible time.”

199/19  General questions 
The Mayor reported that four general questions were submitted by Councillors 
R.W. Sider BEM, L.E. Nichols, J.H.J. Doerfel and Mrs S. Dunn.

Question from Councillor Robin Sider BEM:

“Will the Leader and members of this Council join me in congratulating Team 
Spelthorne who took part in this year’s Surrey Youth Games at Guildford, and 

Page 25



Council, 18 July 2019 - continued

16

in doing so with ten other boroughs competing, topped the medals table with 
five golds, five silver and three bronze medals? 

And, will members also join me in thanking the Council leisure staff who 
undertook the arrangements to partake in these games, and to the many 
coaches who freely gave up their time to coach and encourage these young 
people?”

Response from the Leader, Councillor Ian Harvey

 “Thank you for your comments Councillor Sider.   I, and I am sure all 
Members, will join us in congratulating Team Spelthorne on their success.
 
This was the 23rd Specsavers Surrey Youth Games and team Spelthorne 
were particularly successful in achieving the medals that you refer to. We 
entered 24 teams, which meant that we also won the award for entering the 
most teams. 

Around 350 young people aged 6-16 from all areas of the borough enjoyed up 
to seven weeks of free coaching across 12 different sports in the lead up to 
the event. 180 children went on to represent Team Spelthorne at the Games 
at Surrey Sports Park in Guildford on 15 &16 June.

This year saw a change of ethos to the Games where there was a greater 
focus on encouraging new participants into sport, in particular those from a 
less advantaged background, or those who are inactive. For many of the 
participants this was their first experience of a sporting event, with some being 
introduced to the event through our `Fit and Fed’ initiative and the carers 
event which we held in February. 

As Cllr Sider mentioned, the event is totally reliant on our coaches, the 
majority of whom are volunteers from local sports clubs. Spelthorne is very 
lucky to have such dedicated people. The leisure team are pleased to 
manage Team Spelthorne’s participation in the games and are delighted with 
the team achievements this year.”

Question from Councillor Laurence Nichols:

“Could the Leader please explain why he feels that it is not appropriate to 
have any councillors from the official opposition on the Local Plan working 
group?”

Response from the Leader, Councillor Ian Harvey:

“Thank you Cllr Nichols for your question about the Local Plan Working Party.  
I refer you to my previous response to Mrs Doerfel.

I would also add: All councillors will be able to play a part in the development 
of the local plan even if they are not part of the working group.  

Page 26



Council, 18 July 2019 - continued

17

The Local Plan is still in the engagement and scoping stage.  The planning 
team will engage with all ward councillors prior to the preferred options 
consultation which is due to go out in November.  

I remain open minded as to who will be on the working party in the future. If 
any councillor demonstrates a willingness to engage with their colleagues in 
an objective, constructive and non-political way and who has an obvious 
talent that can be contributed, then I may be persuaded that membership 
should be offered to such a councillor.  I would also wish to ensure that any 
new councillor had proved their worth by demonstrating a positive contribution 
to the life of the Council. 

I would not consider it appropriate to offer membership to any new councillor 
who had demonstrated their unsuitability by refusing to take advice from 
officers, shouting at officers and advisors in training meetings or by seeking to 
politicise the Local Plan by misleading the public about the risk to open 
spaces, or indeed any other obviously misleading statements.  You will 
therefore appreciate my reluctance to consider any new members at this time.  
Perhaps when newer members have learnt how business is conducted in the 
Council then the time will be right to look again at the issue.”

In accordance with Standing Order 15.2, Councillor Laurence Nichols asked 
the following supplementary question:

“Would the Leader please spell out in clear terms why he has broken a 
‘gentleman’s agreement’ previously made to Councillor Sandra Dunn to 
include myself on the Local Plan Working Party?”

The Leader, Councillor Ian Harvey responded at the meeting that he had 
previously offered to explain this to Councillor Dunn in private and he was not 
going to do so in public for self-evident reasons.

Question from Councillor Jan Doerfel:

“In the light of significant concerns that the Council’s proposed ‘Local Green 
space methodology’ (which was to form part of the Local Plan) will leave 70 
out of 71 currently protected urban open spaces (I.e. important green spaces 
of value to the community across the whole of Spelthorne) without any 
protection, will Cllr Harvey confirm that these 71 green spaces will remain 
protected and that none of them will be opened up for development?”

Response from the Leader, Councillor Ian Harvey:

“Thank you for your question Councillor Doerfel.
Open spaces are protected from development by national policy even if they 
are not designated in local plans. National policy provides a designation called 
Local Green Space for councils to apply locally as an additional tier of 
protection if they are demonstrably special to the community. 

Page 27



Council, 18 July 2019 - continued

18

We consulted on a local methodology for assessing land to be considered for 
the designation and received a large number of responses that felt the scoring 
system would discount the majority from consideration. Officers have taken 
those comments on board and as a result have removed the scoring element 
from the methodology in favour of a judgement-based assessment. 
Despite what has been erroneously claimed by some Members, the 
methodology we consulted on was not intended to reduce protection of open 
spaces in the urban area or devalue their contribution to our communities but 
we have listened to the concerns and made changes to it. To apply the Local 
Green Space designation to all our open spaces in the urban area would 
dilute its effect.”

Question from Councillor Sandra Dunn

“In order to facilitate transparency about the Council's significant development 
plans, and given the time constraints of consultations open for public 
response, can the Council please provide the consultation documents 
available for Ceaser Court, Thameside House and other Knowle Green 
Estates projects on the Council website?”

Response from the Leader, Councillor Ian Harvey:

“Thank you for your question Cllr Dunn.

Knowle Green Estates Ltd (KGE) is a council owned company and in some 
cases it is making the planning applications on sites which it will later manage 
if they are given planning consent.  

Where KGE consults with the public directly, adverts are placed in the local 
press, on the Council’s website and on social media, two weeks prior to the 
two day events taking place. These two day events are held on a Friday 
afternoon and evening and all day Saturday to maximize attendance. Also, 
hand delivered letters are sent to local residents’ houses advising of the 
consultation event dates/times. So far this has comprised 500 – 700 dwellings 
per project.  This accords with best practice guidelines.

I am of course aware of what I believe to be the issue behind this question 
and can confirm that our officers “went the extra mile” and stayed for almost 
an hour past the closing time for the consultation discussing this and other 
non-specific matters with the person concerned.

Once the planning application is submitted, notices are sent out to nearby 
occupants by the Planning Department and all documents are publicly 
available on the Council’s website for inspection.

There is a statutory consultation period of 21 days however the planning 
department tends to receive and consider all the public written comments up 
until the Planning Committee meeting.

Page 28



Council, 18 July 2019 - continued

19

As all Knowle Green Estates applications are major applications, this means 
the public have around 13 weeks to provide their comments. Furthermore, 
they can also speak for three minutes at the Committee Meeting if they wish 
to voice their views.

This provides a highly transparent process and gives the public plenty of 
opportunities to comment on applications.

We will review what material is made available on the Council website and 
seek to ensure that all the relevant material is available and clearly 
signposted.” 

In accordance with Standing Order 15.2, Councillor Dunn asked the following 
supplementary question:

“As the website is sometimes perceived as being difficult to navigate, please 
can we put this information on the front page as we do for the third runway?”

The Leader, Councillor Ian Harvey responded at the meeting that if this was 
appropriate and possible then we would be happy to action. He would pass 
Councillor Dunn’s comment to the Council’s Communications Team.

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Recommendations of the Cabinet 

Cabinet meeting held on 25 September 2019

1. Proposed new extension to Fordbridge day centre 

1.1. We considered a proposal to build an extension to the Fordbridge day centre.

1.2. The extension would increase seating capacity in the dining room from 81 seats 
to 101 to ensure that visitors are not turned away from a Centre whose dining 
room is already at full capacity due to the high standard of food provided and 
offer a flexible area for other activities such as classes, games or exercise to 
take place.

1.3. It would also enable the Opal Group, (which caters for people who need 
additional support when they visit the Centre, including those with dementia or 
who have had a stroke), who currently do not eat in the dining room, to be 
integrated into the wider community by eating their meals alongside everyone 
else. 

1.4. We recognised that although the extension will result in a loss of parking, the 
Centre’s priority need is for additional floor space to meet user demand.

1.5. We agreed to the capital spend of £130,000 for the extension on the basis of 
design option 3, as set out in the appendix to the report.

1.6. Cabinet recommends that Council approves a supplementary capital 
estimate of £130,000 for the proposed extension at the Fordbridge Centre, and 
its inclusion in the 2019/20 capital programme. 

2. Appointment of Independent Remuneration Panel member

2.1. We considered a report on the appointment of a member to the Independent 
Remuneration Panel to fill a vacancy left by a previous Panel member, who had 
resigned from the position for personal reasons.

2.2. Three applicants responded to an advert for the role, although one was 
disqualified due to their employment with another local authority.

2.3. The remaining two applicants were interviewed and both considered well 
qualified and suitable for the role.

2.4. On balance, Alison Osmond is recommended for the role due to her long HR 
experience in the field of compensation and benefits and in the interpretation of 
comparative data and economic trends in that field. A summary of her CV is 
attached at Appendix 1 and a more detailed CV is available in the Members’ 
Room.

Page 31

Agenda Item 9



2.5. Cabinet recommends that Council approves the appointment of Alison 
Osmond to the Independent Remuneration Panel.

3. Investment Acquisition X

3.1. Cabinet considered an exempt report on an opportunity to acquire a site which 
will enable the Council to directly address the longer term sustainability and 
regeneration of the Borough.  

3.2. It is a strategic asset which has the potential to improve the environmental and 
economic well-being of the area.  The site is prone to be considered for 
numerous diversified uses all of which have the potential to help the Council 
achieve its strategic objectives outlined in the Corporate Plan.

3.3. We agreed the acquisition of the site and authorised the Chief Executive in 
consultation with the Chief Finance Officer, the Leader and the Cabinet 
Member for Finance to undertake any necessary subsequent negotiations 
(including a further bid if required) and to complete the acquisition of the asset.

3.4. We further agreed to delegate the selection of the external property manager, 
design team and the contractor for the Phase 1 enhancement works to the 
Group Head of Regeneration and Growth in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder.

3.5. Cabinet recommends that Council approves a supplementary Capital 
provision of £42m to provide sufficient headroom in the Capital Programme for 
the acquisition and for the appointment of the design team and the contractors 
for enhancement projects.

Councillor Ian Harvey 
Leader of the Council         24 October 2019

Page 32



Appendix 1

Summary CV of recommended appointee

Alison Osmond is a Senior HR Manager with more than 20 years’ experience 
in leading, maintaining and developing compensations and benefits including 
benchmarking, pay scales, performance related pay reviews, pensions and 
sickness benefits for both UK and international businesses.  Alison brings a 
wealth of experience of best practice from the private sector whilst 
understanding the functions and operations of local government.  Originally 
from a finance background, Alison has a good understanding and working 
knowledge of the financial aspect of the HR remit.  

As a non-executive director for an education trust for the past 2 years, Alison 
understands the need for scrutiny from external sources to ensure that well-
informed decisions are made and public money is spent in an effective way.

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Report from the Leader of the Council on the work of the 
Cabinet

Meetings held in September 2019

This is my report as the Leader of the Council on the work of the Cabinet. It is 
an overview of the main business considered by the Cabinet at its two 
extraordinary meetings held on 11 September and ordinary meeting of 25 
September 2019. At the latter meeting, we also considered reports on a 
proposed new extension at Fordbridge day centre, the appointment of an 
Independent Remuneration Panel member and an exempt report on 
investment acquisition X. These all included recommendations to Council and 
are therefore dealt with earlier on this agenda. 

Extraordinary Cabinets – 11 September 2019

1. Heathrow - Response to Airport Expansion Consultation - Key 
Decision

1.1 At our first extraordinary meeting on this date, we considered the 
recommendation from the extraordinary Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee meeting held on 3 September, a petition from Stanwell Green 
Lungs and a report including detailed responses to Heathrow’s airport 
expansion proposals and key issues and benefits. 

1.2 We agreed not to take the action the petition requested for reasons 
provided at the meeting and stated in full in the minutes of the meeting.

1.3 As the borough which is probably most heavily impacted by the 
proposed expanded airport, the Council needs to ensure it protects the 
quality of life of its residents, and makes Heathrow Airport Limited fully 
aware of the Council’s requirements for airport expansion.

1.4 We agreed that we can only re-affirm the Council’s support for a third 
runway and appropriate and proportionate expansion, subject to:

a) endorsing the 16 requirements as recommended by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, which are set out in full in the minutes of the 
meeting;

b) expressly reiterating our demands that our impacted communities be 
properly compensated via the Wider Property Offer Zone scheme; 
and

c) seeking to further explore the Heathrow West proposal and to 
ascertain if this is a viable proposition.

1.5 We also agreed the covering letter and detailed responses as part of our 
consultation submission to Heathrow.

Page 35

Agenda Item 10



2. Exempt report – Investment Acquisition W
2.1 At our second extraordinary meeting on 11 September, we considered 

an urgent exempt report on an opportunity to acquire a strategic asset 
with a steady income stream in the short term and the opportunity to 
generate greater income streams for the Council in the future.

2.2 We agreed to:

1. Approve the acquisition of the investment asset identified as W;

2. Formally agree the offer submitted, and authorise the Chief 
Executive to undertake any necessary subsequent negotiations 
(including a further bid if required) and complete the acquisition of 
the asset (in consultation with the Chief Finance Officer, the Leader 
and the Cabinet Member for Finance);

3. Authorise the Chief Finance Officer to decide (i) the most financially 
advantageous funding arrangements for the purchase, (ii) the most 
tax efficient method of holding the asset, and overall to ensure the 
acquisition is prudentially affordable;

4. Authorise the Head of Corporate Governance to enter into any legal 
documentation necessary to acquire the asset;

5. Exempt Contract Standing Orders in respect of our advisors.

Cabinet – 25 September 2019

1. Recommendations from the Local Plan Working Party
1.1 We considered the recommendations from the Local Plan Working Party 

on Local Plan consultation documents and noted there would be further 
opportunities to amend and adjust the documents as work on the Local 
Plan progressed.

1.2 We agreed:
1. the Consultation Strategy, with minor amendments to be delegated 

to the Strategic Planning Manager and changes of any significance 
to be referred to the Working Party for agreement;

2. the general content and scope of the draft policies to be published 
for consultation, subject to the final wording of the draft policies to be 
agreed by the Working Party prior to consultation;

3. the draft allocations to be published for consultation, subject to 
inclusion of the changes agreed to at the supplementary meeting 
and final wording to be agreed by the Working Party prior to 
consultation; and

4. the evidence base documents be published to support the 
consultation.

Page 36



2. Financial Monitoring Reports
2.1 We noted the capital and revenue monitoring reports on expenditure for 

the period from April to June 2019.
2.2 Overall the projected outturn position for the capital programme was an 

underspend of £35.3m, primarily due to slippage on the following 
development works:
 Spelthorne Leisure Centre
 Thameside House
 West Wing
 Whitehouse Hostel
 Ashford Hospital

2.3 The underspend would be carried forward to fund the future works.

2.4 Overall the projected outturn position for the revenue budget was an 
underspend of £2.766m, primarily due to the following areas:
 Reduced revenue impact (borrowing costs) as a result of slipped 

capital development schemes £1.5m
 Slippage on the ring-fenced Economic Development schemes £0.7m
 Business Rates refund £0.4m

2.5 The first two items above would be carried forward to be spent in future 
years.

2.6 The balance on the projected outturn was made up of various smaller 
over/underspends which were set out in the report.

Councillor Ian Harvey 
Leader of the Council 24 October 2019

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Chairman on the Work of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee held a meeting on 25 July 2019 and considered the 
following items of business.

1. Corporate Risk Management 
The Committee noted and accepted the quarterly update on the Corporate 
Risk Register, and recommended it to Cabinet for approval subject to the 
following:

 Their serious concerns regarding the procurement risk being voiced to 
the Chief Executive and Head of Corporate Governance

 Information on the newly created environmental risk being provided to 
the Internal Audit Manager to assist in identifying if any further risk 
mitigating actions are required

 Recording their dissatisfaction at the failure of accountable officers to 
provide information within the required timeframe.

2. Annual Internal Audit Work Summary 2018/19
The Committee considered and noted the Internal Audit Annual Work 
Summary which sets out the independent audit opinion for the financial year 
2018/19 on the Council’s internal control environment, risk management and 
governance arrangements.  

The Committee recommended compliance with the procurement aspect of the 
Local Government Transparency Code.

3. Review of Internal Audit Charter

The Committee resolved to approve the Internal Audit Charter 

4. Annual Governance Statement
The Committee approved the draft Annual Governance Statement and 
endorsed the improvement actions identified in the Statement.

5. Update from BDO
The external Auditors provided an update on the planned external audit of the 
Council’s accounts for the year ended 31 March, which had been affected by 
the ongoing delay in KPMG finalising the value for money opinion for 2017/18.

6. Committee Work Programme
The Committee approved its Work Programme for the 2019-2020 Municipal 
year.

Councillor Joanne Sexton
Chairman of the Audit Committee 24 October 2019

Page 39

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Chairman on the work of the Licensing 
Committee

There has been one Licensing Committee and one Sub-Committee meeting since 
my last report. Details of these meetings are set out below.

Licensing Committee – 4 September 2019

1. The Licensing Committee considered a report on a draft review of the taxi 
and private hire policy and agreed it for consultation, subject to inclusion of 
amended wording in relation to tinted windows. 

2. The Committee also considered a proposal to introduce a joint warranting 
scheme for Licensing Officers, in conjunction with Surrey Licensing 
Authorities, to enable improved enforcement of the taxi and private hire trade 
across the County.

3. The Committee agreed to recommend Council to approve amendments to 
the scheme of delegations to provide for the implementation of a joint 
warranting scheme empowering Licensing Enforcement Officers from other 
Surrey authorities to exercise common agreed enforcement duties when 
vehicles are operating outside of the issuing authority. This recommendation 
will be brought before a future meeting of Council.

Licensing Sub-Committee – 3 October 2019

1. A Licensing Sub-Committee considered an application by Sensations Leisure 
Ltd for a Premises Licence at Unit 5, Thames Edge, Staines-upon-Thames. 
The applicant proposed to operate the premises as an adult private members 
club on Fridays and Saturdays and corporate events venue at other times of 
the week. 

2. The Sub-Committee was persuaded that due to the history of the premises 
and on the evidence of previous Sub-Committee decisions, they were not fit 
for purpose as a private members’ club or party venue. This was because 
the premises had a lack of sound insulation which resulted in unacceptable 
noise disturbance to residents in Thames Edge. In the absence of an 
acoustic report, the Sub-Committee did not have the evidence to persuade it 
that any conditions it may impose to promote the prevention of public 
nuisance objective in relation to noise, would be appropriate and 
proportionate. The Sub-Committee refused to grant the licence for the 
reasons set out in the decision notice.

Councillor Robin Sider
Chairman of the Licensing Committee 24 October 2019

Page 41

Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank



  

Report of the Chairman on the work of the Members’ Code of Conduct 
Committee

The Members’ Code of Conduct Committee has met once since the last Council 
meeting, on 24 September 2019, and considered the following items of business. 

1. Review of the Planning Code
1.1 The Committee reviewed the Planning Code and suggested clarification of some 

areas where there may be ambiguity.
1.2 The Committee agreed that the Head of Corporate Governance should report 

back to the next meeting with proposed changes to the code.

2. Members’ Induction Training
2.1 The Committee discussed induction training generally, whether planning training 

should be mandatory and members’ non-attendance at these events.
2.2 The Committee agreed that the Head of Corporate Governance should 

investigate alternative forms of training and ask Group Leaders for their 
comments on attendance at training events.

3. Complaint updates
3.1 The Committee received updates on two complaints against councillors.
3.2 The investigation into a complaint against one councillor was ongoing, but was 

expected to be concluded in the near future.
3.3 The other complaint had been considered by the Monitoring Officer but dismissed 

as frivolous.  The Independent Person had reviewed the decision and agreed the 
complaint should not be upheld. 

Murray Litvak
Chairman of the Members’ Code of Conduct Committee       24 October 2019

Page 43

Agenda Item 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Chairman on the work of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has met on two occasions since the previous report 
was prepared for Council.  This report therefore gives an overview of the main issues 
considered by the Committee at its meetings on 3 and 10 September 2019.

Extraordinary Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting – 3 September 2019
1. Heathrow Airport Expansion
1.1 The Committee received a factual presentation on the 'pros and cons' of expansion at 

the airport by SBC officers from the Heathrow Expansion Working Group and a 
presentation on Heathrow West, the alternative proposal for a new terminal 
configuration for an expanded airport, by representatives of the Arora Group. 

1.2 All councillors were given the opportunity to convey their views and those of the 
residents in their ward on the expansion proposals. 

1.3 The Committee then debated the key component parts of the Heathrow expansion 
proposal in order to identify a position on each of these and to inform its 
recommendation to Cabinet on the Council's policy stance.

1.4 The Committee concluded that as the current proposals from Heathrow Airport Ltd did 
not address the Council’s previous concerns and additionally now presented 
significantly greater issues for residents, it recommended to Cabinet that Spelthorne’s 
policy stance on Heathrow Expansion must indicate the Borough is unable to support 
the development consent order in its current form.

1.5 It further recommended that the Heathrow West proposal specifically, needed to be 
explored in greater depth, and that only if the Council’s demands as agreed by the 
Committee (and set out in the minutes of the meeting) were addressed to the 
Council’s satisfaction, then and only then would Spelthorne be able to review its 
position and support expansion.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Meeting - 10 September 2019  
1. Review of Community Safety
1.6 The Committee noted the report from Jackie Taylor, Group Head for Neighbourhood 

Services on a review of Community Safety over the past year.
1.7 Sergeant Grinter of Surrey Police attended the meeting and explained the reasons for 

the rise in reported crime: more reports being made of domestic violence, the location 
of a custody centre in Spelthorne which fed from Runnymede and Elmbridge, and 
changes to Home Office reporting of crime rules had meant incidents that would not 
have been recorded as a crime in the past were now classified as such. 
Report from Police and Crime Commissioner

1.8 The Committee heard from Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner David Munro who 
gave an overview of the role of the PCC, the Police and Crime Plan priorities and the 

Page 45

Agenda Item 14



 

ongoing challenges.  He also gave details of the increase in police officers as result of 
the precept and responded to members’ questions on a range of issues.

2. South Western Railway Franchise update
2.1 David Wilby gave a detailed presentation on progress made with the SWR franchise 

delivery plan.  Mr Wilby acknowledged that performance was not at the level they had 
hoped, but they were working closely with Network Rail and had taken measures to 
improve this.

3. Corporate Project Management
3.1 The Committee received in private an updated report on projects across the Council 

and a presentation on the Council’s housing development programme.
4. Work Programme
4.1 The Committee considered the work programme for 2019 to 2021 and proposed that 

consideration was given to moving forward the fire service operation review in the 
programme.  Ethical investment was also to be added to the programme,

4.2 It was agreed to set up two task groups to consider the following:

 Fly-tipping, abandoned vehicles and litter

 Free off-peak parking in Staines upon Thames

Councillor Vivienne Leighton
Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 24 October 2019

Page 46



 

Report of the Chairman on the work of the Planning Committee

The Planning Committee has met on three occasions since the previous report was 
prepared for the Council meeting.  This report therefore gives an overview of the key 
items considered by the Committee at its meetings on 24 July, 21 August and 18 
September 2019.

1. Planning Committee – 24 July 2019

1.1 This meeting considered two planning applications. 
  

1.2 Application 19/00747/FUL: This application sought approval for the change of 
use from retail to a mixed use of part café and part offices.  The Committee 
approved the application.

1.3 Application 19/00654/HOU: This application was for the erection of a single 
storey rear extension incorporating the side walls of the existing conservatory 
and a further projection beyond the rear elevation of the dwelling.  There were 
no objections or public speakers.  The Committee approved the application.

2. Planning Committee – 21 August 2019

2.1. This meeting considered five planning applications. Five public speakers and 
two Ward Councillors took the opportunity to put forward their views to the 
Committee. 

2.2. Application 19/00901/FUL: This application proposed the demolition of the 
existing Clubhouse and outbuildings to allow for the construction of a new 
clubhouse and apartment complex.  The application was refused, as 
recommended in the Planning Committee report.

2.3. Application 19/00692/FUL: This application sought approval for the 
replacement of the existing dwelling with a three storey apartment. The 
Committee approved the application.

2.4. Application 19/00884/FUL: Proposed a change of use from offices/bank to a 
mixed user of commercial units and residential flats and the erection of a new 
second floor. The recommendation to approve was overturned and the 
Committee refused the application.

2.5. Application 19/01031/FUL – This application sought alterations to the roof 
including extensions to the dormer windows.  The application was approved 
by the Committee.

2.6. Application 19/00933/FUL – The Committee agreed to defer this item to the 
next meeting to enable corrections to be made to the report.

2.7 The Planning Committee noted the Housing Delivery Test Action Plan which 
national government required the Council to produce.

Page 47

Agenda Item 15



 

3. Planning Committee – 18 September 2019

3.1 The Committee considered four applications and a tree preservation order at 
this meeting.  A significant number of members of the public attended in 
relation to two applications, the White House Hostel and Northumberland 
Close.  

3.2 Application 19/00815/FUL – This application sought approval for the provision 
of a 31 bed homeless hostel for single people.  Two public speakers and a 
Ward councillor took the opportunity to address the Committee.  The 
application was approved by the Committee.

3.3 Application 19/00956/FUL – This application was for the erection of a building 
to provide warehousing and distribution/logistics.  Two public speakers and a 
Ward Councillor addressed the Committee.  The application was refused by the 
Committee as recommended.

3.4 Application 19/01051/FUL – This application sought approval for the erection of 
two buildings to be delivered as an extension to a wider redevelopment.  There 
were no public speakers and the application was approved.

3.5 Application 19/00933/FUL – This item was for the erection of an enclosed patio 
centre and had been deferred from the meeting on 21 August 2019.  The 
Committee approved the application.

3.6 Tree Preservation Order TPO 263/2019 was confirmed without modification.

Councillor Richard Smith-Ainsley 24 October 2019
Chairman of Planning Committee       

Page 48



Document is Restricted

Page 49

Agenda Item 21
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	9 Recommendations of the Cabinet
	Appendix to recomendations of Cabinet

	10 Report from the Leader of the Council
	11 Report from the Chairman of the Audit Committee
	12 Report from the Chairman of the Licensing Committee
	13 Report from the Chairman of the Members' Code of Conduct Committee
	14 Report from the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	15 Report from the Chairman of the Planning Committee
	21 Exempt report - Supplementary Capital estimate for property acquisition V

